
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, APRIL 17, 2023, 3:00 P.M. 801 GROVE STREET 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

SWEARING IN OF OFFICERS Albon Head 

MEETING MINUTES 
1. Approval of March 20, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes

INFORMATION ITEM & REPORTS 
1. Regional Transportation Council – April 13, 2023 Jeff Davis 
2. Human Resources Kelli Shields 

a. Mentor Program
3. Commuter Rail Jon-Erik Arjanen 

a. Long Term Parking Update
b. Network Outage

4. Operations Wayne Gensler 
5. Marketing & Communications Melissa Chrisman 

a. April Report
b. Quarterly Ridership Task Force Update
c. Quarterly EASYRIDE Update Antonio Pasamonte 

6. Community Engagement Detra Whitmore 
a. April Report

7. Strategy, Planning & Development Chad Edwards 
a. General Planning Consultant Update
b. Trinity Lakes Station Update
c. Texas State Legislative Update Steve Montgomery 

8. Finance Fred Crosley 
a. February Financials

9. Information Technology Bruce Lewis 

ACTION ITEMS 
1. BA2023-26 General Contractors Services Wayne Gensler 
2. BA2023-27 MATS Interlocal Agreement Wayne Gensler 
3. BA2023-28 Mobility on Demand (ZIPZONE) Contract Service Renewal Wayne Gensler 

Final Year – River North Transit, LLC (Via) 
4. BA2023-29 Financial Audit and Review Services Fred Crosley 
5. BA2023-30 Insurance Broker Services Fred Crosley 

RESOLUTION 
1. R2023-03 Support for Downtown Fort Worth Strategic Plan Chad Edwards & 

Andy Taft 

Page 1 of 77



PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

CHAIR’S REPORT 

OTHER BUSINESS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors may convene in Executive Session under the Texas Open Meetings Act for the consultation with its 
Attorney pursuant to Section 551.071; deliberation regarding real property pursuant to Section 551.072; deliberation 
regarding prospective gift pursuant to Section 551.073; deliberation regarding personnel matters pursuant to Section 
551.074; deliberation regarding security devices pursuant to Section 551.076 and/or deliberations regarding economic 
development negotiations pursuant to Section 551.087. 

VOTE ON ACTION TAKEN ON MATTERS DELIBERATED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURN 

Page 2 of 77



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, MARCH 20, 2023 

ATTENDEES: 

Board Members Present:  Teresa Ayala – Secretary, Michael Crain, Charles Edmonds, Nick Genua, Chris 
Nettles, Ben Robertson, Tito Rodriguez – Vice Chair, Paul Slechta 

Board Members Absent:  Jeff Davis, Brian Hawkins, Sharla Horton-Williams 

Executive Leadership Team:  Richard Andreski, Jon-Erik Arjanen, Christine Black, Melissa Chrisman, Fred 
Crosley, Chad Edwards, Wayne Gensler, Bruce Lewis, Kelli Shields, Detra Whitmore 

Board Attorney:  Albon Head 

CALL TO ORDER 
With a quorum of the Board of Directors present Vice-Chairman, Tito Rodriguez, called the Board of Directors 
meeting to order at 3:01 pm at 801 Grove Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
There were no citizen comments. 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
Detra Whitmore and Richard Andreski presented the United Way Campaign Update and provided Kintisha 
Williams and Reginald Grant with a check in the amount of $16,380.50 based on employee campaign 
contributions. 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
Paul Slechta, Chairman of the Nominating Committee provided the board with the following officer 
recommendations:  Jeff Davis, Chair, Tito Rodriguez, Vice Chair and Sharla Horton-Williams, Secretary. 

Motion:  Charles Edmonds made a motion to accept and approve the Nominating Committee’s 
recommendations.  Michael Crain seconded.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Albon Head administered the Oath of Office to Tito Rodriguez.  The other officers will be sworn in at the April 
board meeting. 

MEETING MINUTES 
Motion:  Charles Edmonds made a motion to approve the February 21, 2023 Board of Director Meeting 
Minutes as submitted.  Michael Crain seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.  

INFORMATION ITEMS & REPORTS 
1. Regional Transportation Council – Tito Rodriguez reported on the March 9, 2023 meeting.
2. Executive Leadership Team Austin Visit & Retreat – Richard Andreski provided an update to the board

regarding the ELT’s Retreat and visit to CapMetro.
3. Human Resources – No report at this time.

Page 3 of 77



4. Commuter Rail – Jon-Erik Arjanen introduced and welcomed Vern Hoston, COO of TRE to the team.  He
discussed the recent storms that caused outages, downed trees and other related issues and thanked
the rail teams for their prompt response to all instances.  provided an update on the bi-directional track
status at selected stations on TEXRail corridor.

5. Operations – Wayne Gensler provided a brief report on operations KPI and an update on the 117
pads/shelters.

6. Marketing & Communications – Melissa Chrisman touched on the March marketing and communications
Report and advised the board that the department had won 3 awards in the last 2 years.

7. Community Engagement – Detra Whitmore provided highlights on the March report and stated we are
holding a “Hospitality Day on Transit” the morning of April 7 for the local downtown travel and hospitality
industry.

8. Strategy, Planning & Development – Discussed earmarks for two upcoming projects and Chad Edwards
also gave updates on Trinity Lakes Station, the E. Lancaster Avenue Study, Stockyards Transportation
Study and mentioned McCart and E. Berry.  There will be a BRT Study Report update in May.  Steve
Montgomery provided a report on the Texas State Legislative sessions and the currently Bills 67 & 68
directly or indirectly affect transportation.  He will forward the board a list of all the bills he is currently
tracking and the advocacy efforts regarding same.

9. Finance – Fred Crosley reported on the January financials.  Noted the FTA Triennial Review is underway
and we have started the FY24 budget process.

10. Information Technology – Bruce Lewis did not have a report but has two action items which are noted
below. 

ACTION ITEMS 
1. BA2023-22 ERP Managed Services Provider (JD Edwards) was presented by Bruce Lewis.

Motion:  Ben Robertson motioned to approve the ERP Managed Services Provider.  Nick Genua seconded. 
Motion passed by unanimous vote. 

2. BA2023-23 IT Disaster Recovery was also presented by Bruce Lewis for consideration.

Motion:  Ben Robertson motioned to approve the disaster recovery action item.  Paul Slechta seconded.  
Motion passed by unanimous vote. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Richard Andreski had the opportunity to spend Saturday morning at the Hershel R. Payne Bus Garage to visit 
with our frontline workers for Transit Worker Appreciation Day.  He mentioned a consistent theme, every 
member was focused on providing great service.  Mr. Andreski added that while there is still much work to do, 
we are starting with a formidable foundation with our teams.  There were two trips to Capitol Hill this month 
where he and others continued to make the case for federal investments in public transportation.  Additionally, 
he and several commuter rail CEOs met with members of Congress and their staff.  As the lone representative 
from Texas, he shared our TEXRail success story and the progress in extending service to our medical district. 
They also met with Rep. Graves of Missouri, Rep. Cole of Oklahoma and Rep. Nehls of the Houston area.  
Mr.  Andreski also attended the APTA Legislative and High-Speed Rail Conferences.  One message delivered 
loud and clear by Mitch Landrieu, advisor to President Biden, “We (the transit industry) need to spend our 
federal funds more quickly and deliver great projects.”  The current funding levels are a once-in-a-lifetime 
opportunity to show what can be achieved with proper funding.  Agencies will be scrutinized and considered in 
accordance with their spend or lack thereof. 

Page 4 of 77



CHAIR’S REPORT 
There was no chair report. 

OTHER BUSINESS 
No other business was discussed. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Vice Chair Rodriguez called an Executive Session to order at 4:15 pm to discuss Metro Area Transit System 
presentation and BA2023-21 the 2023 Executive Incentive Program.  The Members, board attorney, Richard 
Andreski, Wayne Gensler, Kelli Shields and Christine Black all moved to the Board Executive Conference 
Room.  At 4:36 pm, Mr. Gensler exited the Board Executive Conference Room.  At 4:43 pm the Directors, 
attorney, Mr. Andreski, Ms. Shields and Ms. Black exited the conference and Vice Chair Rodriguez adjourned 
the Executive Session and called the regular board meeting to order at 4:44 pm. 

ACTION TAKEN ON MATTERS DELIBERATED IN THE EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1. BA2023-21 2023 Executive Incentive Program 

Motion:  Nick Genua motioned to approve the 2023 Executive Incentive Program.  Ben Robertson seconded.  
Motion postponed by unanimous vote. 

ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 4:46 pm. 

Page 5 of 77



Marketing and Communications Report

March 2023

Melissa Chrisman
VP of Marketing and Communications
April 2023

Page 6 of 77



Paid Media – March Results

CAMPAIGN NAME: TEXRAIL RIDERSHIP
RESULTS: 1,333,261 AD VIEWS

6,267 AD CLICKS
0.5% CLICK-THRU RATE

TACTICS: PAID SOCIAL, DIGITAL, 
STREAMING

Streaming advertisements 
posted a video completion rate 

greater than 91%!

CAMPAIGN NAME: TCC STUDENT RIDERSHIP
RESULTS: 17,486 AD VIEWS

44 CLICKS
0.3% CLICK-THRU RATE

TACTICS: DIGITAL

Page 7 of 77



Paid Media – March Results
CAMPAIGN NAME: SYSTEM RIDERSHIP
RESULTS: 3,731,998 AD VIEWS

6,346 AD CLICKS
0.9% CLICK-THRU RATE

TACTICS: RADIO, OUTDOOR, PRINT, 
DIGITAL, PAID SOCIAL

CAMPAIGN NAME: TRE RIDERSHIP
RESULTS: 328,777 AD VIEWS

334 AD CLICKS
0.1% CLICK-THRU 
RATE

TACTICS: DIGITAL

21,557

27,178

0
5,000

10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000

TRE RIDES - MARCH (3RD WEEK) 

MARCH 2022 MARCH 2023

Page 8 of 77



Paid Media – March Results
CAMPAIGN NAME: ZIPZONE
RESULTS: 298,889 AD VIEWS

1,534 CLICKS
0.5% CLICK-THRU RATE

TACTICS: PAID SOCIAL, DIGITAL, STREAMING

CAMPAIGN NAME: GOPASS
RESULTS: 119,974 AD VIEWS

60 CLICKS
0.1% CLICK-THRU RATE

TACTICS: STREAMING
DOWNLOADS: 2,247; +19% YEAR-OVER-YEAR
TICKET VALUE SOLD: $123,512; +31% YEAR-OVER-YEAR

Page 9 of 77



Earned Media – March Results
EARNED MEDIA RESULTS: MEDIA VALUE
MEDIA COST EQUIVALENT: $755,739
TOTAL STORIES: 63

0

20

40

60

80

100

PRINT WEB RADIO TV

Media Coverage by Type

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH

Page 10 of 77



Shared Media – March Results
SHARED MEDIA RESULTS: ACCOUNT FOLLOWERS
FACEBOOK: 22,196 (+395)

INSTAGRAM: 4,003 (+143)

TWITTER: 4,972 (+51)

NEXTDOOR: 303,365 (+2,022)

MOST ENGAGED CONTENT: 5,800 users 
reached, 224 likes and reactions, 8 comments, 
13 shares, 224 link clicks.

MOST ENGAGED CONTENT: 13,100 users 
reached, 284 likes and reactions, 10 comments, 
44 shares, 101 link c licks.

332,514

334,536

331,500

332,000

332,500

333,000

333,500

334,000

334,500

335,000

Account Followers

FEBRUARY MARCH

Page 11 of 77



Owned Media – March Results
OWNED MEDIA RESULTS: GOVDELIVERY EMAIL/TEXT MARKETING
BULLETINS SENT: 39 (+6)
TOTAL RECIPIENTS: 189,872 (+27,104)
EMAIL OPENS: 43,528 (+5,745)
EMAIL OPEN RATE: 27% (-1%)
LINK CLICKS: 2,206 (+270)

28,500

29,000

29,500

30,000

Subscribers

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH

200,000

205,000

210,000

Subscriptions

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH

OWNED MEDIA RESULTS: RIDETRINITYMETRO.ORG
MOST VISITED PAGES: TEXRail schedules

Homepage
Bus routes and schedules
Trip planner
Tickets

NEW 
VISITORS: 

77%

RETURNING 
VISITORS: 23%

Website Users: 63,456

NEW VISITORS RETURNING VISITORS

0
50,000

100,000
150,000
200,000
250,000

VISITORS PAGEVIEWS

Website Traffic

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH

Page 12 of 77



Partnerships – March Results

Friday on the Green: April 14
• Southside ZIPZONE

activation
• Fixed-route buses
• Fort Worth Bike Sharing

Looking ahead …

MAIN ST. Fort Worth Arts 
Festival: April 20-23
• Molly the Trolley activation
• Special TRE Sunday service
• TEXRail
• Fort Worth Bike Sharing

Jazz Wine Trains: April 14, 21, 28
• TEXRail sponsorship
• Ticket giveaway online

The Dash partnered with 
Cultural District museums for a 
Spring Break campaign.

Trinity Metro’s Southside  
ZIPZONE provided service to 
the Fort Worth Botanic Garden’s 
World of Orchids exhibit. 

TEXRail was the presenting 
sponsor of Grapevine Vintage 
Railroad’s Kiss Me I’m Irish 
Express brew train. 

Page 13 of 77



EASYRIDE – March Results
EASYRIDE TICKET SALES
REVENUE $51,853 (+$10,592)

+CITY OF FORT WORTH $1,661 (+$309)

+TCC $4,005 (+$768)

EASYRIDE TICKET SALES BY TICKET TYPE
TICKET TYPE NUMBER SOLD REVENUE

LOCAL ONE-DAY 11,619 (+1,478) $43,571 (+$7,793)
LOCAL SEVEN-DAY 82 (+77) $1,538 (+$1,444)
LOCAL MONTHLY 95 (+10) $5,700 (+$600)
REGIONAL MONTHLY 1 (-1) $144 (-$144)
LOCAL ANNUAL 2 (+2) $900 ($+900)
REGIONAL ANNUAL 0 (+/-0) $0 (+/-$0)

31
8

30
9 53

2 62
8 72

4 78
3 88

8

1,
21

5

1,
29

1

1,
35

7

1,
34

8

1,
21

3 1,
43

2

1,
19

0

1,
71

3

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H

A
P

R
IL

M
A

Y

JU
N

E

JU
L

Y

A
U

G
U

S
T

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R

O
C

T
O

B
E

R

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H

2 0 2 2 2 0 2 3

CITY OF FORT WORTH RIDES

March 2023 new partners include: 
• Cavalli at Iron Horse Station
• AIDS Outreach Center
• SafeHaven of Tarrant County
• DASH Network of Fort Worth

1,
73

6

2,
11

0

3,
85

2

3,
82

2

2,
11

3

1,
22

2

1,
00

4

2,
22

3

4,
13

8 4,
81

1

3,
64

8

2,
14

8

2,
11

6 2,
89

4 3,
45

1

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H

A
P

R
IL

M
A

Y

JU
N

E

JU
L

Y

A
U

G
U

S
T

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R

O
C

T
O

B
E

R

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H

2 0 2 2 2 0 2 3

TCC RIDES

Page 14 of 77



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Item Title:  Ridership Task Force Q2 Update Meeting Date:   April 17, 2023 

BACKGROUND 
In September 2022, Trinity Metro assembled a staff-led 30-day Ridership Task Force. The goal of the 
Task Force was to develop tactics to increase ridership through projects that could be completed within 
the next fiscal year. Members represented many Trinity Metro departments in order to consider all ideas, 
discuss opportunities and challenges, and explore different perspectives on how to bring new riders to 
the system and encourage current riders to ride more frequently. Members included: 

• Melissa Chrisman, Executive Sponsor – Marketing
• Evan Escher, Chair – Planning
• Sarah Rogers, Vice Chair – Management Trainee
• Bianca Tillis, Secretary – Human Resources
• Genia Jackson – Bus Operations
• Jessica McMillion – Information Technology
• Nate Newby – Marketing
• Ron Newman – Bus Operations
• Kathryn Roy – Finance
• Evelia Zalazar – ENVOY

DETAILS 
The Ridership Task Force recommended nine tactics in the three categories of safety, education and 
customer experience. The tactics were presented to both the Executive Leadership Team and the Board 
of Directors in October 2022.  

Melissa Chrisman, VP of Marketing and Communications will provide an update on the recommended 
tactics and highlight progress made in the second quarter of fiscal year 2023.   

RECOMMENDATION 
There is no recommendation as this is an information item for the committee’s feedback and discussion. 

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Melissa Chrisman April 5, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

Page 15 of 77



Ridership Task Force
Q2 Update

Melissa Chrisman
VP of Marketing and Communications
April 2023

Page 16 of 77



Task Force Members
Chairperson: Evan Escher – Transit Planner
Co-Chairperson: Sarah Rogers – Management Trainee
Secretary: Bianca Tillis – HR Specialist 

Members:
Genia Jackson – Bus Operator
Jessica McMillion – System Application Administrator
Nate Newby – Creative Services Manager
Ronald Newman – Director of Operations
Kathryn Roy – Staff Accountant
Evelia Zalazar – Transit ENVOY

Executive Sponsor: Melissa Chrisman - VP of Marketing and Communication

Meeting dates:
9/1/22

9/16/22
9/22/22
9/29/22

2Page 17 of 77



Three Strategies

3Page 18 of 77



Upgraded Technology
Tactic 2

FY 2023
IT, Procurement, Operations, Marketing & Communications

5

Planning In 
Progress

Page 19 of 77



GoPass/See Say Integration
Tactic 3

Q1/Q2 FY 2023
IT, Security, Operations, Marketing, Customer Experience

Page 20 of 77



Upgrade Website
Tactic 4

FY 2023
Contractor, IT, Marketing, Planning, Finance

7

Planning In 
Progress

Page 21 of 77



“Schedule Day”
Tactic 5

SPRING SERVICE CHANGE FY 2023
ALL HANDS

8

Planning In 
Progress

Page 22 of 77



Officers/NPOs Onboard
Tactic 6

FY 2023
Outreach, Operations, Customer Experience

9

Planning In 
Progress

Page 23 of 77



Stop & Stations Improvements
Tactic 8

FY 2023 – UPDATE:  Timing will flow in to the next several years
Facilities, Planning, Procurement, Customer Experience, Marketing, Operations

11

Planning In 
Progress

Page 24 of 77



Rewards/Loyalty Program
Tactic 9

FY 2023
ALL HANDS

12

Planning

Page 25 of 77



• Tactic 1  TEXRail “Re Grand-Opening” Event JAN 10, 2023

• Tactic 2  Upgraded Technology FY 2023

• Tactic 3  GoPass/See Say Integration Q1/Q2 FY 2023

• Tactic 4  Upgrade Website FY 2023

• Tactic 5  Schedule Day May 19, 2023

• Tactic 6  Officers/NPOs Onboard FY 2023

• Tactic 7  Veterans in Reduced Fare Program Q2 FY 2023

• Tactic 8  Stop and Stations Improvements FY 2023

• Tactic 9  Rewards/Loyalty Program FY 2023

Ridership Task Force Summary

Page 26 of 77



QUESTIONS?

Page 27 of 77



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Item Title:  EASYRIDE Q2 Update Meeting Date:  April 17, 2023 

BACKGROUND 
The Trinity Metro EASYRIDE program allows local organizations to receive a 25% discount on their transit 
tickets as a way to encourage ridership. Originally started as a program targeting daily corporate 
commuters with discounts on local and regional monthly and annual tickets, the program has broadened 
its reach. In January 2021, the range of available tickets was increased to include local daily and weekly 
tickets to encourage program use by not-for-profits, local community organizations and business travelers 
who may not need more than a daily or weekly ticket.  

DETAILS 
Antonio Pasamonte, Manager of Strategic Partnerships will provide an update on the EASYRIDE 
program including the current status, upcoming partnerships, ticket sales revenue and goals/strategy for 
fiscal year 2023.  

RECOMMENDATION 
There is no recommendation as this is an information item for the committee’s feedback and discussion. 

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Melissa Chrisman April 5, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

Page 28 of 77



Antonio Pasamonte/Ja’sha High
Strategic Partnerships Manager/Strategic Partnerships Representative
April 17, 2023

Page 29 of 77



EASYRIDE OVERVIEW

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

JANUARY FEBUARY MARCH

84

88

92

PARTNERS

92 companies

Page 30 of 77



EASYRIDE OVERVIEW
Total EASYRIDE ticket revenue for second quarter

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

JANUARY FEBUARY MARCH

$33,744 

$41,261 

$51,853

TOTAL SALES

TOTAL SALES

Page 31 of 77



EASYRIDE OVERVIEW
Total EASYRIDE ticket sales for second quarter

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

JANUARY FEBUARY MARCH

5,560

10,233

11,799

TICKET SALES

Page 32 of 77



UPCOMING THIRD QUARTER PARTNERSHIPS

MHMR

Salvation Army (ARC Division)

Core Civic

The Shelby Luxury Apartments

Page 33 of 77



Detra Whitmore
Vice President of Community Engagement
Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion Officer

Community Engagement
April 2023

Page 34 of 77



Customer Care Calls

17,215
15,670 15,284 14,999 14,514

16,643 17,607
16,368

18,556 19,309
21,205

25,84325,993

22,819
23,929

19,849

23,127

26,362
24,368 24,611 25,456

24,253 24,724

25,057

27,028

22,081 22,175

22,980
21,813

23,463

0

6,000

12,000

18,000

24,000

30,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept

C
al

ls

FY2021
FY2022
FY2023

TYPES OF CALLS
31.58% No Wait Time!

861 – TEXRail
146– Bike Sharing

85 - TRE
91 - ZIPZONE

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N

Page 35 of 77



27
63 64 61

80
8229

31 22 24

44 46

28

28 42 37

36 36

78
75

86
73

35
49

55

25
32 32 27

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s

Total Complaints Valid Complaints
Invalid complaints FY22 Valid Complaints

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May April June July Aug
FY22 10 5 12 26 34 18 14 15 11 12 6 10
FY23 3 9 16 19 13 18

3

9

16
19

13

18

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

C
om

m
en

da
tio

ns

Top Complaints
No Show

Passed By
Bus did not arrive

Rude Driver

Top Commendations
Professional driver

Courteous Care Rep
Clean Service
Polite Driver

Customer Expectations

Page 36 of 77



77 77 76 74 78

108

138 141
146 149

163 165
170 173

184 184 186 189

1065 1107

1165

1165 1175 1190

-25

25

75

125

175

225

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

October November December January February March April May June July August September

Va
np

oo
ls

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

FY22 Vanpools FY23 Vanpools FY22 Participants FY23 Participants

FY2023 Goal: 206 25%

New Vans added:
• V.A. Hospital
• Bureau of Prisons
• Solar Turbines (new

work site)
• North Texas Health

Care Laundry
Page 37 of 77



13
19 24

108

70

107

69

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023

B
us

 S
to

ps
 A

do
pt

ed

410 System wide

Goal 134  25% 

Page 38 of 77



In the Community Trinity Metro team members continue to
donate time to spend with our future 
professionals.  We were honored to spend 
time with the students at Como Elementary 
School for their Career Day.  

BY THE 
NUMBERS

• 6,893
Customer
Contacts

• 6 Community
Events/Career
Days

• 15 Travel
Training/Ride-
A-Long

Trinity Metro’s Travel Training program 
is spreading across town!  Mia Horne, 
Transit ENVOY helps new riders travel 
on our train, tour Fort Worth Central 
Station, orientation on how to use our 
ticket vending machines and on to the 
buses to get familiar with the Bus 
Riders Guidelines. Page 39 of 77



In the Community

We continue to connect with our 
community in all ways.  Transit ENVOYs 
Evelia Zalazar and Steven Arner shared 
information with FWISD students at the 
Wyatt Pyramid Community Spring Festival 
hosted by O.D. Wyatt High School, March 
31st.

Trinity Metro Rock Star team of 
employees and Board Members 
partnered with Trinity Habitat Build to help 
build a home for a deserving family!

Page 40 of 77



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Item Title:  General Planning Consultant (GPC) Update Meeting Date:   April 17, 2023 

BACKGROUND 
On November 28, 2022, the Trinity Metro Board of Directors approved the General Planning Consultant 
(GPC) Contract (BA2023-11) that permitted staff to complete negotiations and enter into a contract for a 
variety of planning activities that address ongoing and emerging issues related to planning, designing, 
constructing, financing, maintaining, and improving the Trinity Metro transportation system. There was 
some discussion about how the Board would be informed on the status and progress of tasks assigned 
to the GPC.  

In an effort to keep the Board informed, the following is a brief overview of last month’s progress. 

Task Order Description Status 
TO1 – Program 
Management 

This task covers meetings, 
invoices, and scope 
development. 

• Continued oversight

TO3 – Transit Value 
Proposition 

This task will outline the value of 
transit in Fort Worth and provide 
materials that can be shared with 
others during meetings. 

• Coordination meetings started
• Data collection and analysis started

TO4 – ABC Review A Better Connection (ABC) was 
implemented in Sept 2021. Now 
that the system has been in 
action for over a year, the 
Planning Team would like to 
review what was implemented to 
find improvements and evaluate 
changes that were made. 

• Kick-off meeting conducted
• Data collection started

TO5 – TRE Double 
Tracking 

Prepare 30% design for 2 miles 
of TRE track as outlined in the 
NCTCOG’s BUILD Grant. 

• Kick-off meeting conducted

TO7 – Graphics 
Support 

Support to staff for graphics, 
maps and presentations 

• No tasks assigned yet

TO8 – Grant Writing 
Support 

Support of grant writing and 
applications 

• No tasks assigned yet
• HDR provides reminders of available

grants opportunities
TO9 – TEXRail Before 
and After Study 
Ridership Review 

Provide review and assumptions 
as to ridership forecasting vs 
actual differences 

• Data collection and review of existing
reports

• Staff, FTA and consultant
coordination

Page 41 of 77



RECOMMENDATION 
There is no recommendation as this is an information item for the Board’s feedback and discussion. 

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Chad Edwards April 6, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

Page 42 of 77



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Item Title:  Trinity Lakes Station Update Meeting Date:   April 17, 2023 

BACKGROUND 
Trinity Lakes Station is a new Trinity Railway Express (TRE) Station currently under construction less 
than one mile east of the existing TRE Richland Hills Station.  It will be part of the 1,600-acre master 
planned community known as Trinity Lakes.  The train station and associated commuter parking are 
being advanced under a public-private partnership agreement between Trinity Metro and Trinity Lakes 
Partners, LLC (“Developer”). 

Trinity Metro contracted with Austin Bridge and Road to construct the station platforms, drainage, and 
other civil improvements inside the existing TRE ROW.  Trinity Metro is utilizing TRE operating and 
maintenance contractor Herzog Transit Services, Inc. (Herzog) to construct the track and signal 
improvements. These improvements are on schedule and on budget.  

Trinity Metro is also responsible for the construction of two parking lots to be constructed according to 
engineering plans prepared by and on land owned by the Developer.  Trinity Metro was scheduled to 
issue an Invitation for Bid (IFB) in February 2023 to construct the two parking lots totaling 495 parking 
spaces.  Unfortunately, we have not received the agreed to documents (i.e., final signed and sealed 
design plans and specifications) from the developer so that we could proceed as intended with 
procurement in February.  In order to move forward without further delay, Trinity Metro must now 
complete the final design and procurement documents on behalf of the Developer. This has caused a 
delay to the anticipated completion of the parking lots from October 2023 to early 2024.  

Further, the Developer is responsible for constructing the access road from Trinity Boulevard to the new 
station and bringing utilities to the new station.  Although we have had several assurances from the 
Developer that the access roadway would be delivered before the anticipated station opening in October 
2023, we still have not seen the plans for the roadway and are unsure that the roadway can be delivered 
in the previously agreed to timeframe.  Public access to the station depends entirely on the Developer 
completing the access road and utility connections.  We are working on a backup plan with the City of 
Fort Worth to provide an alternate means of access. 

Trinity Metro’s budget for the new station construction including the parking lots is $26.74 million, which 
includes the design and construction management costs.  Trinity Metro is working with North Central 
Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to finalize funding 
agreements for the Trinity Lakes Station.  Currently, 100% of Trinity Metro’s funding commitments will be 
covered by federal dollars through a combination of Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Improvement 
Program (CMAQ) federal funding, Surface Transportation Block Grant Funds, and Transportation 
Development Credits (TDCs). 

Although Trinity Lakes Station was scheduled to open for service in October 2023, we anticipate that due 
to the aforementioned challenges incurred by the Developer, the station may not open until early 2024 

Page 43 of 77



or later.  The ability for Trinity Metro or other parties to construct the parking lots or access road will 
require agreement with the Developer, creating significant uncertainty with the overall project schedule. 

Trinity Metro will continue to work with the Developer to get the information needed including plans, 
documents and agreements.  We will also provide more frequent updates to the Board regarding the 
status of the project. 

RECOMMENDATION 
There is no recommendation as this is an information item for the committee’s feedback and discussion. 

April 7, 2023 

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Chad Edwards

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

Page 44 of 77



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Item Title:  Texas State Legislative Update Meeting Date:   April 17, 2023 

BACKGROUND 
The 88th Texas Legislature convened in Regular Session on January 10, 2023.  Trinity Metro has 
proactively engaged with our regional legislators to ensure the interests of our riders, organization, and 
other stakeholders are protected and advocated.   As part of an ongoing effort to keep the Board apprised 
of these activities, the Trinity Metro Government Relations team will provide regular, periodic briefings 
and respond to any questions or concerns the Board may have. 

CAMPAIGN DETAILS 
The presentation will provide an overview of pertinent legislation filed and the status update of our 
legislative advocacy efforts. We are following approximately 82 bills associated with Trinity Metro directly 
or transportation authorities in general. With less than 60 days left in the Regular Session, the pace of 
legislative activity is brisk.  We will provide an up to the minute update of keys issues being discussed.   

RECOMMENDATION 
There is no recommendation, as this is an information item for the committee’s feedback and discussion. 

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Chad Edwards 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

Page 45 of 77



As of 
2/28/2023
(Unaudited)

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash restricted for Operations $10,708,216
Cash restricted for Rail Vehicles 651,518
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 39,225,742
Receivables 28,997,977
Inventory 8,345,891
Prepaid 5,006,724

Total Current Assets 92,936,068
FIXED ASSETS

Construction in Progress 26,368,064
Land 157,201,486
Buildings 152,275,513
Building Improvements 11,264,851
Machinery and Equipment 375,717,042
Improvements other than Buildings 771,567,694
Intangible Assets 18,897,291

1,513,291,941
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization (403,611,877)

Total Fixed Assets 1,109,680,064

TOTAL ASSETS $1,202,616,132

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 16,361,871    
Payroll Liabilities 3,176,183
Unearned Revenue (Note 18) 27,102,072
Current portion of LT Due Grapevine 388,406

Total Current Liabilities 47,028,532

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Long Term Payable to City of Grapevine 3,095,344

Total Long Term  Liabilities 3,095,344

TOTAL LIABILITIES $50,123,876

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $1,090,437,888
Operating Reserve 10,708,216
Escrow Reserve 2,000,000
Unrestricted 49,346,151

TOTAL NET POSITION $1,152,492,256

Fort Worth Transportation Authority 
Balance Sheet

Page 46 of 77



Actual
2023

Budget
2023 Variance

Operating Revenue
  Fares

Multi Modal Fares (Note 1) $2,304,768 $2,925,242 ($620,474)
ACCESS Fares 402,708 408,074 (5,366)
Easy Ride & Corporate 332,172 346,065 (13,893)

  Other Revenue
Sales Tax (Note 2) 45,663,175 43,887,978 1,775,197
Fort Worth Bike Share 151,103 210,980 (59,877)
Advertising 229,167 229,167 0
Rental Income 234,785 288,455 (53,670)
Other (Note 3) 620,994 961,309 (340,315)
Total Operating Revenue: 49,938,872 49,257,270 681,602

Federal/State/Local Income:
Operating Grants  (Note 4) 33,880,386 431,035 33,449,351
Grapevine/NRH  Contribution (Note 5) 5,506,432 4,888,263 618,169
Contributions from Partners 684,884 592,650 92,234
Total Assistance Income 40,071,702 5,911,948 34,159,754

Total Revenue $90,010,574 $55,169,218 $34,841,356

Operating Expenses 
   Fixed Route Operations

Salaries & Fringe Benefits (Note 6) $12,320,697 $11,937,639 $383,058
Services 310,668 495,178 (184,510)
Purchased Transportation 2,121,005 2,089,802 31,203
Other (Note 7) 1,722,026 2,119,235 (397,209)
  Total Fixed Route Operations 16,474,396 16,641,854 (167,458)

   ACCESS Operations
Salaries & Fringe Benefits (Note 8) 2,450,208 2,640,848 (190,640)
Services 1,709,500 1,627,921 81,579
Other 380,446 431,091 (50,645)
  Total ACCESS Operations 4,540,154 4,699,860 (159,706)

   TRE Operations
Salaries & Fringe Benefits 32,632 44,839 (12,207)
Services (Note 9) 6,382,466 6,962,112 (579,646)
  Total TRE Operations 6,415,098 7,006,951 (591,853)

   TEXRail Operations 
Salaries & Fringe Benefits 188,020 130,054 57,966
Services (Note 10) 7,994,607 8,570,965 (576,358)
Other (Note 11) 2,503,308 3,181,965 (678,657)
  Total TEXRail Operations 10,685,935 11,882,984 (1,197,049)

  Bike Share Operations 
Salaries & Fringe Benefits 173,581 176,507 (2,926)
Services 23,338 68,575 (45,237)
Other 64,248 118,490 (54,242)
   Total Bike Share Operations 261,167 363,572 (102,405)

   General & Administrative
Salaries, Wages & Fringe Benefits 6,201,835 6,536,584 (334,749)
Other Professional Services (Note 12) 3,870,635 4,584,575 (713,940)
Vehicle & Facilities Maintenance (Note 13) 938,966 1,372,835 (433,869)
Software/Systems Maintenance (Note 14) 1,355,680 2,013,659 (657,979)
Other General & Administrative (Note 15) 1,342,213 1,699,498 (357,285)
  Total General & Administrative 13,709,329 16,207,151 (2,497,822)
Total Operating Expenses: $52,086,079 $56,802,372 ($4,716,293)

Operating Income / (Deficit) $37,924,495 ($1,633,154) $39,557,648

Capital Grants (Note 16) 206,254 0 206,254
Investment Income (Note 17) 552,474 958,335 (405,861)
Depreciation (19,604,469) (20,917,100) 1,312,631

Net Income / (Deficit) $19,078,754 ($21,591,919) $40,670,671

Fort Worth Transportation Authority 
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Fiscal Year to Date February 28, 2023

(Unaudited)

Page 47 of 77



($ 000's)

Note 1 Multi Modal Fares

3% greater ridership than budget and a $0.31 decrease in average price to budget.

Budgeted average price based on pre-covid estimates which may be impacted by timing

differences in fare programs, variances by mode, and use of multiple modes per ticket.

Note 2 Sales Tax

38,197$    Actual collections through January

7,466$      Accrual estimate for February

10.9% YTD increase over the prior year's collections

Note 3 Other Revenue

Substantially due to delay in implementing new ZIPZONE services plus less TRE link expenses and their related revenues.

Note 4 Operating Grants  

ARP additional assitance was received in current year.

Note 5 Federal/State/Local Income - Grapevine/NRH Contribution

New NRH Contribution for TEXRail started in January at  $166K per month.

Amount recorded was offset by accrual for amounts payable to Grapevine for $110k per month.

Note 6 Fixed Route Operations - Salaries & Fringe Benefits 

Substantially due to greater overtime and fringe benefit costs.

Note 7 Fixed Route Operations -Other

Substantially due to savings on fuel costs and less use of parts.

Note 8 ACCESS Operations - Salaries & Fringe Benefits 

Substantially due to savings from less operators than budgeted.

Note 9 TRE Operations - Services

Savings in purchased transportation, property insurance, and PTC costs.

Note 10 TEXRail Rail Operations - Services

Substantially due to savings in fuel costs.

Note 11 TEXRail Rail Operations - Other

Substantially due to savings in repairs and insurance costs.

Note 12 General & Administrative - Other Professional Services

Substantially due to savings in advertising services, benefit plan costs, TEXRail TOD plan costs and cost of printing of passes.

Note 13 General & Administrative - Vehicle & Facilities Maintenance

Substantially due to savings in repairs.

Note 14 General & Administrative - Software/Systems Maintenance

Substantially due delay in budgeted IT projects.

Note 15 General & Administrative - Other G&A

Substantially due to savings in utilities.

Note 16 Capital Grants

Received reimbursement for PTC work on the Trinity River Bridge project under the FRA CRISI grant. 

Note 17 Investment Income

Substantially due to having less cash on hand than anticipated as grant funds from the FTA have been delayed.

Note 18 Unearned Revenue

DART agreement for DFWIA access makes up $26.0 MM of this total in unearned revenue.

Fort Worth Transportation Authority
Notes to Financial Presentations

Comparisons of Actual Results to FY23 Budgeted Amounts

Page 48 of 77



BOARD ACTION ITEM 
Item Number:  BA2023-26 Meeting Date:  April 17, 2023 
Item Title:  General Contractor 

BACKGROUND 
Trinity Metro has numerous Facilities projects that require the use of skilled tradesmen. Examples of 
these projects include remodeling, equipment installation, retrofitting, and reacting to damage resulting 
from severe weather. Oftentimes, these projects are too large, complex, or time-sensitive to be completed 
by the Building Maintenance staff. A General Contractor has the resources available to complete these 
projects as needed. More than twenty-five (25) projects are currently waiting to be completed that were 
approved for FY2023. The General Contractor will be utilized to complete these projects, as well as future 
projects that are identified. Having a General Contractor available will additionally assist in maintaining a 
state of good repair across all Trinity Metro facilities. They will also expedite the completion of $1,500,000 
in grant-funded projects from the FY22 Bus and Bus Facilities Grant. 

PROCUREMENT 
The Trinity Metro Procurement Department has followed its procurement policies and procedures with 
this purchase, and it complies with all applicable Federal, State, and Trinity Metro procurement 
requirements. 

FINANCING 
Funding for the first year of this contract is available in the Trinity Metro FY2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets. Funds for future years of the contract will be considered in the respective proposed budgets. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Trinity Metro Board of Directors authorizes the President & Chief Executive Officer to enter into a 
three-year contract with two (2) one-year option renewals with Mart, Inc. for $12,500,000 plus a 15% 
($1,875,000) contingency for unforeseen expenses for a total amount not to exceed $14,375,000.  

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Wayne Gensler April 6, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

DISPOSITION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SECRETARY APPROVAL DATE 

Page 49 of 77



BOARD ACTION ITEM 
Item Number:  BA2023-27 Meeting Date:  April 17, 2023 
Item Title:  Metro Area Transit System Corporation Interlocal 

Agreement with Fort Worth Transportation Authority 

BACKGROUND 
Trinity Metro has notified RATP DEV the contract for all day-to-day bus related operations with Fort Worth 
Transportation Authority (“Trinity Metro”) for Trinity Metro will not be renewed.  The expiration of the 
current contract is September 30, 2023.  

Metro Area Transit System Corporation (“MATS”) is organized to aid, assist, and act on behalf of the 
Trinity Metro.  

Trinity Metro and MATS have agreed upon an Interlocal Agreement between MATS and Trinity Metro, 
which outlines the responsibilities of both parties regarding day-to-day bus related operations to be 
provided to Trinity Metro by MATS. 

PROCUREMENT 
N/A 

FINANCING 
The fiscal year 2023 budget includes expenditures sufficient to fund the bus related operations of MATS. 
Funding of future bus related operations will be included in subsequent fiscal year proposed budgets.  

RECOMMENDATION 
Trinity Metro’s Board of Directors authorizes the President & Chief Executive Officer to enter into the 
attached agreement with MATS providing day-to-day operating services as outlined in the agreement.  

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Wayne Gensler April 6, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

DISPOSITION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SECRETARY APPROVAL DATE 

Page 50 of 77



Page 51 of 77



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

FORT WORTH TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AND 

METRO AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM CORPORATION 

TO ENHANCE THE PROVISION OF MOBILITY SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated as of the 31st day of March,  
2023 (the "Effective Date"), is entered into by and between FORT WORTH 

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, doing business as "Trinity Metro," a regional 
transportation authority created, existing, and operating under Chapter 452 of the Texas 
Transportation Code ("Trinitv Metro") and METRO AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM 

CORPORATION, a local government corporation created by (but legally separate from) 
Trinity Metro under Subchapter D, Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code, and possessing 
all the powers and privileges of a nonprofit corporation incorporated under the Texas Non-
Profit Corporation Act ("MATS"), Trinity Metro and MATS being sometimes collectively 
referred to as the "Parties" or individually as a "Party." 

WHEREAS, Trinity Metro operates state-of-the-art transportation systems and desires to 
provide its patrons a high level of service; and 

WHEREAS, Trinity Metro and RA TP Dev USA, a Texas Corporation ("RA TP Dev") 

entered into the Contract for Transit Management Services dated August 24, 2018 (the "RA TP 

Dev Contract") pursuant to which RATP Dev, either itself or through its affiliate, McDonald 
Transit Inc. ("MTI"), agreed to "provide professional management of all aspects of Trinity 
Metro's day-to-day operations, including paratransit services, scheduling, and dispatching" and 
"all administrative, operating, and maintenance personnel needed for the operation," but 
exclusive of Trinity Metro's rail operations, bike-sharing, and other functions, as more 
specifically set forth in the RA TP Dev Contract; and 

WHEREAS, the RA TP Dev Contract also made RA TP Dev and MTI "responsible for all 
negotiations of the labor contract and the administration of such and the hiring and training 
of employees," and pursuant to that responsibility MTI entered into the Agreement 
Between McDonald Transit, Inc. (MTI) and Teamsters Local Union No. 997 (the "Union"), 

effective October 1, 2021 (the "MTI Labor Contract") regarding the managing and operating 
of Trinity Metro's bus operations, ACCESS paratransit services, and maintenance technicians 
(the "Bus Operations"); and 

WHEREAS, MA TS was formed, and is authorized, to assist and act on behalf of Trinity 
Metro to accomplish any governmental purpose of Trinity Metro including, without limitation, 
financing, constructing, owning, managing and operating, or otherwise supporting, enhancing, or 
advancing, regional mobility service, and to engage in activities in the furtherance of such 
purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Trinity Metro determined that the functions and services currently 
performed under the RA TP Dev Contract, including the services performed under the MTI Labor 
Contract, could be more efficiently and effectively conducted by MATS, thus benefiting the 
public Trinity Metro serves; and 

Page 52 of 77



WHEREAS, pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government 
Code, Section 431.105, Texas Transportation Code, and the Code of Federal Regulations, Trinity 
Metro and MATS may contract with one another to accomplish a governmental purpose, and the 
Parties wish to proceed under that authority including, without limitation, Subsection 791.025(c), 
Texas Government Code, applicable to the purchase of goods and services by a local government, 
and 2 C.F.R. §200.138(e) applicable to strategic sourcing, shared services, and similar 
procurement arrangements; and 

WHEREAS, (a) at its meeting on March 31 , 2023, the board of directors of Trinity Metro 
(the "Trinity Metro Board") authorized this Agreement, and (b) at its meeting on March 31 , 2023, 
the board of directors of MA TS authorized this Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, conditions, and provisions set 
forth in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby affirmed, the Parties agree 
as of the Effective Date as follows: 

1. Recitals are True and Correct. All matters stated above are found to be true and
correct and are incorporated herein by reference as if copied in their entirety. 

2. The Implementation Date. The Parties will agree upon a date to implement the
actions contemplated under this Agreement (the "Implementation Date"), which as of the 
Effective Date is tentatively scheduled for September 30, 2023. 

3. Matters Unrelated to this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that,
as of the Effective Date, Trinity Metro utilizes MA TS to provide insurance for the Grapevine 
Vintage Railroad and the City of Grapevine, and Trinity Metro and MATS consent to that use and 
all future uses of MATS by Trinity Metro that do not materially interfere with MATS' performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement. 

4. Transfer to and Assumption bv MATS of the MATS Mobility Services.

Effective as of the Implementation Date, Trinity Metro will assign and transfer to MATS, and 
MATS will fully assume pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, all responsibility for day-to-day 
management and operation of all bus, ACCESS paratransit services and maintenance technicians, 
including the services performed under the MTI Labor Contract, and all functions related thereto, 
including the hiring and supervision of all operators, supervisors, maintenance technicians, service 
attendants, service rack and shop employees, schedulers, dispatchers, mechanics, foremen, support 
and administrative personnel, such assignment including all management, administration, 
operations, maintenance, and other functions being performed by RATP Dev, MTI, or their 
employees under the RATP Dev Contract and the MTI Labor Contract (collectively, the "MATS 

Mobility Services"). For the avoidance of confusion it is expressly agreed by the Parties that the 
MA TS Mobility Services will not include, nor will MA TS be assigned or assume any 
responsibility for, the management or operation of (a) TEXRail, (b) Trinity Railway Express, (c) 
ZIPZONE ridesharing transit solution, (d) VANPOOL, (e) EASYRIDE, or (f) Fort Worth Bike 
Sharing, including the hiring and supervision of their managers, operators, conductors, dispatchers, 
maintenance employees, or other individuals; similarly, the MATS Mobility Services will not 
include, nor will MATS assume services performed by or employees working in, Trinity Metro's 
executive management, human resources, procurement, information technology, 

Page 2 of 13 

Page 53 of 77



Page 54 of 77



Page 55 of 77



Page 56 of 77



Page 57 of 77



Page 58 of 77



Page 59 of 77



Page 60 of 77



Page 61 of 77



Page 62 of 77



Page 63 of 77



Page 64 of 77



Page 65 of 77



Page 66 of 77



Page 67 of 77



Page 68 of 77



Page 69 of 77



Page 70 of 77



BOARD ACTION ITEM 
Item Number:  B2023-28 Meeting Date:  April 17, 2023 
Item Title:  Mobility on Demand (ZIPZONE) Contract Service 

 Renewal Final Year - River North Transit, LLC (Via) 

BACKGROUND 
River North Transit, LLC (Via) was selected as a contractor to provide on-demand rideshare service. On 
November 28, 2022, BA2023-09 approved increasing the total contract amount from $10,000,000 to 
$12,500,000. It is now time to seek approval to exercise the final renewal option with Via. 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION 
The Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) Goal for this contract is 5%. 

FINANCING 
Funds are available in the Trinity Metro FY2023 Operating Budget, which includes a contribution from 
the City of Fort Worth and a partnership with Mercantile Partners Inc.  With the service period overlapping 
two fiscal years, Trinity Metro will consider any remaining amount needed for the next fiscal year in the 
FY2024 Operating Budget along with any applicable contributions from local partners. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Trinity Metro’s Board of Directors authorize the President & Chief Executive Officer to approve the final 
year of the five (5) year agreement with River North Transit (VIA) for Mobility On-Demand (ZIPZONE) 
services.  The contract will begin on June 1, 2023 and will expire on May 31, 2024.   

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Wayne Gensler April 5, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

DISPOSITION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SECRETARY APPROVAL DATE 

Attachment 

Page 71 of 77



Page 72 of 77



BOARD ACTION ITEM 
Item Number:  BA2023-29 Meeting Date:  April 17, 2023 
Item Title:    Financial Audit and Review Services 

BACKGROUND 
As provided in Trinity Metro's enabling legislation, Chapter 452 of the Texas Transportation Code, as 
amended, Trinity Metro is required to have an annual audit performed by an independent certified public 
accountant or a firm of independent certified public accountants. 

Trinity Metro is required to have an annual single audit of grant funding and the annual audit of Trinity 
Metro’s 401(k) employee benefit plan under various federal laws and regulations. 

Trinity Metro is required to have an independent review and certification of compliance with the Payment 
Card Industry (PCI) standards to be able to continue processing credit card payments and a review of 
the annual and periodic submissions to the National Transit Database (NTD) under federal regulations. 

Trinity Metro has established an outsourced program of internal audit reviews or audits of various financial 
and operating processes and balances for conformity with company policies and procedures as a part of 
good financial stewardship.  

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
In accordance with the Trinity Metro Procurement Policy, Request for Proposal (RFP# 23-T024), for 
Financial Audit and Review Services was advertised on Trinity Metro's website and sent to known firms 
for participation. 

The solicitation resulted in responses from four firms: CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, Moss Adams, LLP, 
Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. and Whitley Penn LLP.   

An Evaluation Committee reviewed and rated the proposals based on: 1) Qualifications of Firm; 2) 
Qualifications of Staff; 3) Work Plan/Project Approach; 4) Fee Proposal; and 5) DBE Certification 
Requirements. 

The proposals rated highest are as follows: 
-Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P.
-Whitley Penn, LLP

The Evaluation Committee has elected to appoint both firms to provide outsourced internal audit and 
review services in the event that the highest rated firm cannot provide services requested: (1) in a timely 
matter, (2) due to scope or fee issues, (3) due to lack of professional staff availability, or (4) because of 
a professional conflict or independence consideration. This dual appointment will provide Trinity Metro 
with services timeously, economically and within professional standards. 

PROCUREMENT 
Trinity Metro’s Procurement Department has followed procurement policy with the Request for Proposal 
and complies with all applicable Federal, State, and Trinity Metro procurement requirements.   

FINANCING 
Funds are available in the FY2023 Operating Budget for Financial Audit and Review Services. Provisions 
for future years will be requested in the proposed annual budgets. 

Page 73 of 77



The cost of providing identified services is estimated to be $165,000 for the first year rising to $184,000 
in the fifth year, each including a 10% contingency.  The total cost over five (5) years, including a 10% 
contingency, is estimated at $871,000. 

DBE UTILIZATION 
The DBE Goal for the annual financial statements and single audit services is 25%. Weaver and Tidwell, 
L.L.P. has committed to meet this DBE goal for this solicitation.

RECOMMENDATION 
The Evaluation Committee recommends Trinity Metro’s Board of Directors authorize the President/Chief 
Executive Officer, to contract with the following firms to provide financial audit and review services for a 
three-year term, with options to renew for two (2) additional one-year terms for the five (5) years are: 

1. Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P.
2. Whitley Penn, LLP

The total cost over five (5) years for both firms, including a 10% contingency, shall not exceed $871,000. 

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Fred Crosley April 6, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

DISPOSITION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SECRETARY APPROVAL DATE 

Page 74 of 77



BOARD ACTION ITEM 
Item Number:  BA2023-30 Meeting Date:  April 17, 2023 
Item Title:    Insurance Broker Services 

BACKGROUND 
Trinity Metro is seeking to contract with an insurance brokerage firm that would provide consulting and 
placement of third-party insurance. Coverages could include liability, property, causality, cyber, and other 
general coverages not otherwise provided or economically available from the Texas Municipal League 
insurance pool.  With the TEXRail extension planned for the new 2.1-mile segment, insurance options 
will need to be considered for claims management, builder’s risk, professional liability, and pollution 
coverages. Additionally, as part of the overall construction project, an Owner Controlled Insurance 
Program (OCIP) will also be evaluated. 

The overall activity of the Insurance Broker each year will be dependent on the dollar amount and types 
of coverages placed each year.      

In accordance with Trinity Metro’s Procurement Policy, a Request for Proposal (RFP 23-T018) for 
Insurance Broker Services was issued and advertised on Trinity Metro’s website.  Four firms responded 
to the Request for Proposal and complied with the requirements.  Responding firms included: 

• Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC
• Higginbotham Insurance Agency Inc.
• HUB International, Ltd.
• Willis Towers Watson Insurance Services West, Inc.

A Trinity Metro evaluation committee reviewed and evaluated the Request for Proposals.  As a result of 
the evaluations, Higginbotham Insurance Agency Inc. was selected as the highest qualified firm for 
entering into a contract award. 

PROCUREMENT 
The Trinity Metro Procurement Department has followed its procurement policies and procedures with 
this purchase and complies with all applicable Federal, State, and Trinity Metro procurement 
requirements. 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION  
The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Goal for this solicitation was 0%, due to the nature of the 
placement of insurance.  

FINANCING 
The cost for the Insurance Broker contract will be included in Trinity Metro’s annual Operating Budget 
each year. 

Page 75 of 77



RECOMMENDATION 
We request that the Trinity Metro’s Board of Directors authorize the President / Chief Executive Officer 
to contract with Higginbotham Insurance Agency Inc. to assist Trinity Metro with the placement of third-
party insurance and execute a three (3) year contract with two (1) one-year renewal options.   

STAFF DISPOSITION 

Fred Crosley April 6, 2023 

EXECUTIVE LEADER APPROVAL DATE 

DISPOSITION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SECRETARY APPROVAL DATE 

Page 76 of 77



TRINITY METRO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
RESOLUTION 

SUPPORT FOR  
PLAN 2033: DOWNTOWN STRATEGIC ACTION PLAN UPDATE 

(R2023-03) 

WHEREAS, the Fort Worth Transportation Authority, doing business as Trinity Metro (“Trinity Metro”) 
is a regional transportation authority governed by Chapter 452 of the Texas Transportation Code (the 
“Code”) and is a local government as defined by Section 431.003(3)(C) of the Code; and  

WHEREAS, Downtown Fort Worth, Inc., founded in 1981, has worked with community partners to 
plan how Downtown can evolve into Fort Worth’s premier location for business, visitors, and residents; 
and   

WHEREAS, every ten years, Downtown Fort Worth, Inc., partners with the City of Fort Worth and 
Trinity Metro to produce a Downtown Strategic Action Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the newest version, Plan 2033, was developed in 2022 with input from volunteers, 
community stakeholders, the City of Fort Worth, Tarrant County, neighborhood representatives, the 
general public, and Trinity Metro; and  

WHEREAS, Plan 2033 provides strategic guidance in the areas of business development, education, 
housing, retail, arts and entertainment, transportation, urban design, open space, and public art; and  

WHEREAS, Plan 2033 is used as a tool to prioritize policy decisions and planning initiatives for the 
three partners and other community supporters to fulfill the community’s vision for a livable, healthy, 
economically vibrant, and exciting downtown for the next ten years; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRINITY METRO: 

Section 1.  The Board supports recommendations identified in Plan 2033: Downtown Strategic Action 
Plan and will work over the next ten years to implement elements of the plan that Trinity Metro is 
responsible for; and  

Section 2.  The Board approves continued support of the plan as Trinity Metro is part of Downtown 
Fort Worth’s success. 

Adopted this 17th day of April 2023. 

ATTEST: 

By Fort Worth Transportation Authority d.b.a. Trinity Metro. 

__________________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Davis  Richard Andreski 
Chair President & CEO 

Page 77 of 77


	01-BOD Agenda April 17, 2023
	02-March 20 2023 Board Meeting Minutes-DRAFT
	03-BOARD INFO ITEM TLS Apr 2023
	04-APRIL 2023 BOARD - Marketing and Comms Report_FINAL
	Marketing and Communications Report��March 2023
	Paid Media – March Results
	Paid Media – March Results
	Paid Media – March Results
	Earned Media – March Results
	Shared Media – March Results
	Owned Media – March Results
	Slide Number 8
	EASYRIDE – March Results

	05a-APRIL 2023 BOARD INFO ITEM - FY23 Q2 Ridership Task Force Update
	05b-Quarterly Ridership Task Force Update - April 2023
	Ridership Task Force�Q2 Update
	Task Force Members
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12

	06a-APRIL 2023 BOARD INFO ITEM - Quarterly EASYRIDE Update
	06b-Quarterly EASYRIDE Update - April 2023
	Slide Number 1
	EASYRIDE OVERVIEW�
	EASYRIDE OVERVIEW
	EASYRIDE OVERVIEW
	UPCOMING THIRD QUARTER PARTNERSHIPS

	07-Community Engagement Report April - March data [Autosaved]
	Community Engagement�April 2023
	Customer Care Calls
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	08-Info Item GPC Update 04 2023
	09-Info Item-Texas State Legislative Update for Apr 17 Board Meeting - updated by SM
	10a-FWTA Balance Sheet -  February 2023 Final
	10b-FWTA Income Statement -  February 2023 Final
	10c-FWTA Notes to the Financial Stmts -  February 2023 Final
	11-BA2023-26 General Contractor
	12a-BA2023-27 MATS Interlocal Agreement with TM
	12b-MATSBA2023-04 MATS ILA w TM
	13-BA2023-28 Mobility on Demand (ZIPZONE) Contract Service Renewal Final Year-River North Transit LLC (Via)
	14-BA2023-29 Financial Audit and Review Services
	15-BA2023-30 Insurance Broker for April 2023
	16-R2023-03 Downtown FW SAP 2033 Resolution of Support



